

Daily Digest

Senate

Chamber Action

Routine Proceedings, pages \$4659-\$4803

Measures Introduced: Eleven bills were introduced, as follows: S. 1704–1714. Pages \$4685–86

Measures Reported:

S. 1109, to require adequate information regarding the tax treatment of payments under settlement agreements entered into by Federal agencies. (S. Rept. No. 114–76)

S. 1359, to allow manufacturers to meet warranty and labeling requirements for consumer products by displaying the terms of warranties on Internet websites. (S. Rept. No. 114–77)

S. 1705, to authorize appropriations for fiscal year 2016 for intelligence and intelligence-related activities of the United States Government, the Community Management Account, and the Central Intelligence Agency Retirement and Disability System.

Page S4685

Measures Passed:

Department of the Interior Tribal Self-Governance Act: Senate passed S. 286, to amend the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act to provide further self-governance by Indian tribes, after agreeing to the following amendment proposed thereto:

Page S4802

McConnell (for Barrasso) Amendment No. 1471, in the nature of a substitute. Page S4802

Measures Considered:

Every Child Achieves Act—Agreement: Senate began consideration of S. 1177, to reauthorize the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 to ensure that every child achieves, taking action on the following amendments proposed thereto:

Pages S4661-78

Pending:

Alexander/Murray Amendment No. 2089, in the nature of a substitute. Pages \$4669-74

Alexander (for Fischer) Amendment No. 2079 (to Amendment No. 2089), to ensure local governance of education.

Page S4674

Murray (for Peters) Amendment No. 2095 (to Amendment No. 2089), to allow local educational

agencies to use parent and family engagement funds for financial literacy activities.

Page S4675

Alexander (for Rounds/Udall) Amendment No. 2078 (to Amendment No. 2089), to require the Secretary of Education and the Secretary of the Interior to conduct a study regarding elementary and secondary education in rural or poverty areas of Indian country.

Page S4675

Murray (for Reed/Cochran) Amendment No. 2085 (to Amendment No. 2089), to amend the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 regarding school librarians and effective school library programs.

Page S4675

Murray (for Warner) Amendment No. 2086 (to Amendment No. 2089), to enable the use of certain State and local administrative funds for fiscal support teams.

Page S4675

Toomey Amendment No. 2094 (to Amendment No. 2089), to protect our children from convicted pedophiles, child molesters, and other sex offenders infiltrating our schools and from schools "passing the trash"—helping pedophiles obtain jobs at other schools.

Pages \$4676-77

A unanimous-consent agreement was reached providing that each bill manager be in order to offer side-by-side amendments to Toomey Amendment No. 2094 (to Amendment No. 2089) (listed above), and that no second-degree amendments be in order to Toomey Amendment No. 2094 (to Amendment No. 2089) or side-by-side amendments. Page S4675

A unanimous-consent agreement was reached providing for further consideration of the bill at approximately 10 a.m., on Wednesday, July 8, 2015.

Page S4802

Nomination Confirmed: Senate confirmed the following nomination:

By a unanimous vote of 95 yeas (Vote No. EX. 221), Kara Farnandez Stoll, of Virginia, to be United States Circuit Judge for the Federal Circuit.

Pages S4678, S4803

Messages from the House: Page \$4685

Measures Referred: Page S4685

Measures Placed on the Calendar:

Pages S4659, S4685

Executive Communications: Page \$4685

D777

Additional Cosponsors: Pages \$4686-88 Statements on Introduced Bills/Resolutions:

Pages S4688–89

Additional Statements: Pages S4684-85

Amendments Submitted: Pages \$4689-\$4801

Authorities for Committees to Meet:

Pages S4801-02

Privileges of the Floor: Page S4802

Record Votes: One record vote was taken today. (Total—221) Page S4678

Adjournment: Senate convened at 2:30 p.m. and adjourned at 6:54 p.m., until 10 a.m. on Wednesday, July 8, 2015. (For Senate's program, see the remarks of the Majority Leader in today's Record on page \$4802.)

Committee Meetings

(Committees not listed did not meet)

HIGHLY PATHOGENIC AVIAN INFLUENZA

Committee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry: Committee concluded a hearing to examine highly pathogenic avian influenza, focusing on the impact on the United States poultry sector and protecting poultry flocks, after receiving testimony from John Clifford, Deputy Administrator, Veterinary Services, Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service, and David Swayne, Laboratory Director, Southeast Poultry Research Laboratory, Agricultural Research Services, both of the Department of Agriculture; Jim Dean, United Egg Producers, Sioux Center, Iowa; Ken Klippen, National Association of Egg Farmers, Collegeville, Pennsylvania; Brad Moline, Moline Farms, Manson, Iowa, on behalf of the National Turkey Federation; Rob Knecht, Konos, Inc., Martin, Michigan, on behalf of Michigan Allied Poultry Industries; and Tom Elam, FarmEcon LLC, Carmel, Indiana.

BUSINESS MEETING

Committee on Appropriations: Subcommittee on State, Foreign Operations, and Related Programs approved for full committee consideration an original bill entitled, "State, Foreign Operations, and Related Programs Appropriations Act, 2016".

COUNTER-ISIL STRATEGY

Committee on Armed Services: Committee concluded a hearing to examine counter-ISIL (Islamic State of Iraq and the Levant) strategy, after receiving testimony from Ashton B. Carter, Secretary, and General Martin E. Dempsey, USA, Chairman, Joint Chiefs of Staff, both of the Department of Defense.

TECHNOLOGIES TRANSFORMING TRANSPORTATION

Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation: Subcommittee on Surface Transportation and Merchant Marine Infrastructure, Safety and Security concluded a hearing to examine technologies transforming transportation, focusing on whether the government is keeping up, after receiving testimony from Susan Alt, Volvo Group North America, Greensboro, North Carolina; Paul Misener, Amazon.com, and Greg Fox, BNSF Railway Company, both of Washington, D.C.; and Michael Christensen, Port of Long Beach, Long Beach, California.

YAKIMA RIVER BASIN WATER ENHANCEMENT PROJECT

Committee on Energy and Natural Resources: Committee concluded a hearing to examine S. 1694, to amend Public Law 103–434 to authorize Phase III of the Yakima River Basin Water Enhancement Project for the purposes of improving water management in the Yakima River basin, after receiving testimony from Tom Iseman, Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Interior for Water and Science; Derek Sandison, Washington State Department of Agriculture Director, Olympia; Urban Eberhart, Kittitas Reclamation District, Ellensburg, Washington; Michael Garrity, American Rivers, Tacoma, Washington; and Phil Rigdon, Yakama Nation Department of Natural Resources, Toppenish, Washington.

2014 HUMANITARIAN BORDER CRISIS

Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs: Committee concluded a hearing to examine 2014 humanitarian crisis at our border, focusing on a review of the government's response to unaccompanied minors one year later, after receiving testimony from Juan P. Osuna, Director, Executive Office for Immigration Review, Department of Justice; Mark Greenberg, Acting Assistant Secretary of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families; and Philip T. Miller, Assistant Director for Field Operations, Enforcement and Removal Operations, Immigration and Customs Enforcement, and Joseph E. Langlois, Associate Director, Refugee, Asylum and International Operations Directorate, Citizenship and Immigration Services, both of the Department of Homeland Security.

SMALL BUSINESS HEALTH CARE CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

Committee on Health, Education, Labor, and Pensions: Subcommittee on Primary Health and Retirement Security concluded a hearing to examine small business health care challenges and opportunities, after receiving testimony from Thomas M. Harte, Landmark Benefits Inc., Hampstead, New Hampshire, on

behalf of the National Association of Health Underwriters; James G. Scott, Applied Policy, Alexandria, Virginia; Sabrina Corlette, Georgetown University McCourt School of Public Policy Center on Health Insurance Reforms, Washington, D.C.; and J. Kelly Conklin, Foley Waite Associates, Kenilworth, New Jersey, on behalf of the Main Street Alliance.

INTELLIGENCE

Select Committee on Intelligence: Committee held closed hearings on intelligence matters, receiving testimony from officials of the intelligence community.

Committee recessed subject to the call.

House of Representatives

Chamber Action

Public Bills and Resolutions Introduced: 15 public bills, H.R. 2947–2961; and 2 resolutions, H.J. Res. 59; and H. Res. 59, were introduced.

Pages H4860-61

Additional Cosponsors:

Pages H4862-64

Reports Filed: Reports were filed today as follows: H.R. 6, to accelerate the discovery, development, and delivery of 21st century cures, and for other purposes, with an amendment (H. Rept. 114–190, Part 1);

H.R. 2256, to amend title 38, United States Code, to direct the Secretary of Veterans Affairs to submit an annual report on the Veterans Health Administration and the furnishing of hospital care, medical services, and nursing home care by the Department of Veterans Affairs, with an amendment (H. Rept. 114–191); and

H. Res. 347, providing for further consideration of the bill (H.R. 5) to support State and local accountability for public education, protect State and local authority, inform parents of the performance of their children's schools, and for other purposes, and providing for consideration of the bill (H.R. 2647) to expedite under the National Environmental Policy Act and improve forest management activities in units of the National Forest System derived from the public domain, on public lands under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land Management, and on tribal lands to return resilience to overgrown, fireprone forested lands, and for other purposes (H. Rept. 114–192).

Speaker: Read a letter from the Speaker wherein he appointed Representative Abraham to act as Speaker pro tempore for today.

Page H4777

Suspensions: The House agreed to suspend the rules and pass the following measures:

United States-Jordan Defense Cooperation Act of 2015: H.R. 907, amended, to improve defense co-

operation between the United States and the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan; Pages H4779–81

Veterans Identification Card Act 2015: Concur in the Senate amendment to H.R. 91, to amend title 38, United States Code, to direct the Secretary of Veterans Affairs to issue, upon request, veteran identification cards to certain veterans, by a 2/3 yea-and-nay vote of 411 yeas with none voting "nay", Roll No. 391; and Pages H4781–82, H4815–16

Land Management Workforce Flexibility Act: H.R. 1531, to amend title 5, United States Code, to provide a pathway for temporary seasonal employees in Federal land management agencies to compete for vacant permanent positions under internal merit promotion procedures.

Pages H4782–83

Department of the Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2016: The House considered H.R. 2822, making appropriations for the Department of the Interior, environment, and related agencies for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016. Consideration began on June 25th.

Pages H4783-H4814, H4816-56

Agreed to:

Poe (TX) amendment that redirects funding within the Land Acquisition Account by \$1,000,000;

Page H4784

Polis amendment that redirects funding within Wildland Fire Management by \$1,000,000;

Page H4785

Young (AK) amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement the revised comprehensive conservation plan for the Arctic National Wildlife Refuge, Alaska;

Pages H4803-04

Grijalva amendment that prohibits the use of funds in contravention of the Executive Order regarding Indian Sacred Sites; Page H4804

Poliquin amendment (No. 12 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that prohibits the use of funds to enforce the Code of Federal Regulations regarding biomass;

Pages H4804–05

Gosar amendment that prohibits the use of funds to treat the Sonoran Desert Tortoise as an endangered species or threatened species; Pages H4806-07

Gosar amendment that prohibits the use of funds for the United Nations Environment Programme;

Pages H4808-09

Smith (TX) amendment that reduces funding for the EPA's programs and management account to not more than \$1,713,500, and not more than \$3,581,500 for the Office of Congressional and Intergovernmental Relations account; Pages H4810–11

Huffman amendment that prohibits the use of funds to enter into a new contract or agreement or to administer a portion of an existing contract with a concessioner in any facility within a unit of the National Park System of an item with a Confederate flag as a stand-alone feature;

Pages H4811–12

Collins (GA) amendment that prohibits the use of funds to reduce or terminate any of the propagation programs listed in the March 2013 National Fish Hatchery System Strategic Hatchery and Workforce Planning Report;

Page H4812

Gallego amendment that prohibits the use of funds to issue a grazing permit or lease in contravention of section 4110.1 or 4130.1–1(b) of title 43, Code of Federal Regulations;

Page H4816

Huffman amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement National Park Service Director's Order 61 as it pertains to allowing a grave in any Federal cemetery to be decorated with a Confederate flag;

Page H4818

Walberg amendment (No. 9 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that prohibits the use of funds to lobby in contravention of section 1913 of title 18, United States Code, on behalf of the proposed rule entitled "Definition of Waters of the United States Under the Clean Water Act;

Pages H4818-19

Walden amendment (No. 30 printed in the Congressional Record of June 25, 2015) that prohibits the use of funds to complete or implement the revision of the resource management plans for the Coos Bay, Eugene, Medford, Roseburg, or Salem Districts of the Bureau of Land Management or the Klamath Falls Field Office of the Lakeview District of the Bureau of Land management proposed in the bureau of Land Management Plan Revisions and Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Western Oregon published in the Federal Register on April 24, 2015;

Pages H4819-20

Engel amendment that prohibits the use of funds to be used by the Department of the Interior, the Environmental Protection Agency, or any other Federal agency to lease or purchase new light duty vehicles for any executive fleet or agency's fleet inventory, except in accordance with Presidential Memorandum-Federal Fleet Performance, dated May 24, 2011; Pages H4822–23

Byrne amendment that prohibits the use of funds to be used to propose legislation to redirect funds allocated under section 105(a)(2)(A) of the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act of 2006; Pages H4823-24

Grayson amendment (No. 34 printed in the Congressional Record of June 25, 2015) that prohibits the use of funds to enter into a contract with any offeror if the offeror certifies, pursuant to the Federal Acquisition Regulation, that they have been convicted of fraud, charged by a governmental entity with stated offenses, or have been notified of any delinquent Federal taxes in an amount that exceeds \$3,000 for which the liability remains unsatisfied;

Page H4824

Jolly amendment that prohibits the use of funds to research, investigate, or study offshore drilling in the Eastern Gulf of Mexico Planning Area;

Pages H4825-26

Crawford amendment that prohibits the use of funds by EPA to enforce the requirements of part 112 of title 40, Code of Federal Regulations with respect to any farm;

Pages H4827–28

Jeffries amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the National Park Service to purchase or display a confederate flag except in situations where such flags would provide historical context pursuant to a National Park Service memorandum; Page H4828

Smith (TX) amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the EPA to propose, finalize, implement, or revise any regulation in which the research data relied upon to support such action is not derived from established scientific methods;

Pages H4828–29

Newhouse amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the Administrator of the EPA to issue any regulation that applies to an animal feeding operation, including a concentrated animal feeding operation and a large concentrated animal feeding operation;

Pages H4831–33

Jackson Lee amendment that prohibits the use of funds to eliminate the Urban Wildlife Refuge Partnership;

Pages H4834–35

Yoder amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement or enforce the threatened species listing of the lesser prairie chicken; Pages H4835–36

Jackson Lee amendment that prohibits the use of funds to limit outreach programs administered by the Smithsonian Institution; Pages H4836–38

Rothfus amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the Director of the National Park Service to implement, administer, or enforce Policy Memorandum 11–03 or to approve a request by a park superintendent to eliminate the sale in National Parks of water in disposable plastic bottles; Pages H4838–39

Jackson Lee amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the National Park Service in contravention of section 320101 of title 54, United States Code;

Pages H4839-41

Weber (TX) amendment (No. 7 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that prohibits the use of funds in contravention of Section 321(a) of the Clean Air Act;

Page H4841

Noem amendment that prohibits the use of funds to close or move the D.C. Booth Historic National Fish Hatchery and Archives;

Page H4842

Hudson amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the Environmental Protection Agency to issue, implement, administer, or enforce any regulation of particulate matter emissions from residential barbecues;

Page H4844

Thompson (PA) amendment that prohibits the use of funds to treat the northern long-eared bat as an endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973;

Pages H4845–46

Lamborn amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement or enforce the threatened species listing of the Preble's meadow jumping mouse under the Endangered Species Act of 1973; Pages H4846-47

Lamborn amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement or enforce the threatened species or endangered species listing of any plant or wildlife that has not undergone a review as required by the Endangered Species Act of 1973;

Pages H4847–48

Black amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the EPA to finalize, implement, administer, or enforce a revision of the Code of Federal Regulations or any rule with respect to glider kits and glider vehicles;

Pages H4850-51

Mica amendment that prohibits the use of funds to implement Alternative A, Alternative C, or Alternative D, described in the Final General Management Plan and Environmental Impact Statement for Castillo de San Marcos National Monument in St. Augustine, Florida educational center; Page H4851

Burgess amendment that prohibits the use of funds by EPA to hire or pay the salary of any officer or employee of EPA under the Public Health Service Act who is not already receiving pay under that Act on the date of enactment of this Act; Pages H4851–52

Rokita amendment that prohibits the use of funds by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to enforce the Endangered Species Act with respect to the Clubshell, Fanshell, Rabbitsfoot, Rayed Bean, Sheepnose or Snuffbox mussels; Pages H4853-54

Graves (LA) amendment that prohibits the use of funds in contravention of 33 United States Code 1319 with respect to a permit issued or required to be issued to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers pur-

suant to 33 United States Code 1344 for discharges of dredged or fill material impacting wetlands; and Page H4855

Perry amendment that prohibits the use of funds on an unmanned aircraft system or to operate any such system owned by the Department of Interior for the performance of surveying, mapping, or collecting remote sensing data. Pages H4855–56

Rejected:

Grijalva amendment that sought to strike section 416, which reports on the use of climate change funds;

Page H4790

Lawrence amendment (No. 12 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that sought to strike section 422, pertaining to the definition of waters under the jurisdiction of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act;

Pages H4791–92

Beyer amendment that sought to strike section 429, pertaining to the definition of fill material;

Page H4795

Yoho amendment that sought to remove the requirement that 85 percent of nonattainment counties must achieve full compliance with the ozone standard before the limitation on funds in section 438 can take effect (agreed by unanimous consent to withdraw the earlier request for a recorded vote to the end that the amendment stand disposed of in accordance with the previous voice vote thereon);

Pages H4798-99, H4821

Lowenthal amendment that sought to remove the primary designation as one of the ambient air quality standards for ozone subject to the limitation in section 438;

Pages H4800-01

Peters amendment that sought to prohibit the use of funds to be used to enforce section 435 of this Act;

Page H4819

Garamendi amendment (No. 23 printed in the Congressional Record of June 25, 2015) that sought to prohibit the use of funds in the bill to transfer funds made available by the bill for fire preparedness activities to the Wildland Fire Management appropriation for fire suppression activities; and

Pages H4830-31

Murphy (FL) amendment that sought to prohibit the use of funds to carry out seismic airgun testing or surveys off the coast of Florida. Pages H4841-42

Withdrawn:

Cartwright amendment that was offered and subsequently withdrawn that would have provided that only the funds made available by the bill may be subject to the prohibition on hydraulic fracturing contained in section 439;

Page H4801

Lowenthal amendment that was offered and subsequently withdrawn that would have prohibited the use of funds to issue any new Federal oil or gas lease

and drilling permit to any person that does not commit to following Department of Commerce regulations regarding the requirement of obtaining a license for exporting crude oil;

Pages H4820-21

Norcross amendment that was offered and subsequently withdrawn that would have increased funding for Superfund sites by \$22,884,840; Page H4825

Rice (SC) amendment that was offered and subsequently withdrawn that would have prohibited the use of funds to issue any oil and gas lease under the 2017–2022 Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Leasing Program unless the Secretary of the Interior has entered into revenue sharing agreement with each affected State; and

Page H4830

Fitzpatrick amendment that was offered and subsequently withdrawn that would have increased funding for the Forest Legacy Program by \$5,985,000.

Pages H4844–45

Point of Order sustained against:

Speier amendment that sought to prohibit the use of funds to implement, administer, or enforce the final rule following the Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement for the Dog Management Plan, Golden Gate National Recreation Area; and

Pages H4829-30

Garamendi amendment that sought to prohibit the use of funds made available for California drought response or relief in contravention of implementation of the California Water Code. Page H4853

Proceedings Postponed:

Grijalva amendment that seeks to strike section 423, relating to stream buffers; Pages H4792–93

Tsongas amendment that seeks to strike section 425, relating to the limitation on the use of funds for National Ocean Policy; Pages H4793–94

Grijalva amendment that seeks to strike section 433, relating to the availability of vacant grazing allotments;

Pages H4795–96

Polis amendment that seeks to strike section 437, relating to the use of funds for the social cost of carbon;

Pages H4797–98

Edwards amendment that seeks to strike section 438, which provides for a limitation on the use of funds regarding ozone standards; Pages H4799–H4800

Lawrence amendment (No. 12 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that seeks to strike section 439, which provides for prohibitions regarding hydraulic fracturing; Pages H4801–03

Polis amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds in contravention of Public Law 94–579;

Pages H4805-06

Tsongas amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to implement or enforce sections 117, relating to Sage-Grouse, section 121 relating to reissuance of rules (wolves), and section 122 relating to the Northern Long Eared Bat; Pages H4807-08

Grijalva amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to implement or enforce section 120, with respect to ivory;

Pages H4709–10

Beyer amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds in contravention of Executive Orders regarding climate change;

Pages H4712–13

Blackburn amendment (No. 6 printed in the Congressional Record of June 24, 2015) that seeks to reduce funds by 1 percent across-the-board;

Pages H4813-14

Pearce amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to increase the rate of any royalty required to be paid to the United States for oil and gas produced on Federal land, or to prepare or publish a proposed rule relating to such an increase;

Pages H4816-18

Hardy amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to make a Presidential declaration by public proclamation of a national monument under chapter 3203 of title 54, United States Code in the counties of Mohave and Cococino in the State of Arizona, in the counties of Modoc and Siskiyou in the State of California, in the counties of Chaffee, Moffat, and Park in the State of Colorado, in the counties of Lincoln, Clark, and Nye in the State of Nevada, in the county of Otero in the State of New Mexico, in the counties of Jackson, Josephine and Malheur in the State of Oregon, or in the counties of Wayne, Garfield, and Kane in the State of Utah; Pages H4821–22

Zinke amendment (No. 39 printed in the Congressional Record of June 25, 2015) that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to implement, finalize, or enforce subparts F and J of part 1206 of the proposed rule by the Department of the Interior called "Consolidated Federal Oil & Gas and Federal & Indian Coal Valuation Reform" dated January 6, 2015;

Pages H4824-25

Garamendi amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds in contravention of Executive Order 13693; Pages H4826-27

Newhouse amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds by the Department of Interior or the United States Fish and Wildlife Service to treat any gray wolf in Washington, Oregon, or Utah as an endangered species or threatened species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973;

Pages H4833–34

Rouzer amendment that seeks to prohibit use of funds to implement, administer, or enforce the rule entitled "Standards of Performance for New Residential Wood Heaters, New Residential Hydronic Heaters and Forced-Air Furnaces" published in the Federal Register by the EPA;

Pages H4842–43

Hudson amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to remove oil and gas lease sale 260 from the Draft Proposed OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program;

Pages H4843–44

Goodlatte amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds by the EPA to take any actions described as a "backstop" in the Dec. 29, 2009 letter from EPA's Regional Administrator to the States in the Watershed and the District of Columbia in response to the development or implementation of a State's watershed implementation and referred to in enclosure B of such letter;

Pages H4848–50

Westmoreland amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to pay legal fees pursuant to a settlement in any case, in which the Federal Government is a party, that arises under the Clean Air Act, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or the Endangered Species Act; and Pages H4852–53

LaMalfa amendment that seeks to prohibit the use of funds to pay attorney fees in a civil suit under the Endangered Species Act of 1973 pursuant to a court order that states such fees were calculated at an hourly rate in excess of \$125 per hour.

Pages H4854-55

H. Res. 333, the rule providing for consideration of the bills (H.R. 2822) and (H.R. 2042) was agreed to on June 24th

National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2016: The House agreed to the Thornberry motion to close portions of the conference on the bill (H.R. 1735) to authorize appropriations for fiscal year 2016 for military activities of the Department of Defense, for military construction, and for defense activities of the Department of Energy, to prescribe military personnel strengths for such fiscal year, at such times as classified national security information may be broached, by a yea-and-nay vote of 402 yeas to 12 nays, Roll No. 390.

Pages H4814–15

Quorum Calls—Votes: Two yea-and-nay votes developed during the proceedings of today and appear on pages H4814–19 and H4815–16. There were no quorum calls.

Adjournment: The House met at 2 p.m. and adjourned at 1:02 a.m. on Wednesday, July 8, 2015.

Committee Meetings

ASSURING NATIONAL SECURITY SPACE: INVESTING IN AMERICAN INDUSTRY TO END RELIANCE ON RUSSIAN ROCKET ENGINES

Committee on Armed Services: Subcommittee on Strategic Forces held a hearing on June 26, 2015, entitled "Assuring National Security Space: Investing in American Industry to End Reliance on Russian Rocket Engines". Testimony was heard from Katrina G. McFarland, Assistant Secretary of Defense for Acquisition, Department of Defense; General John E. Hyten, USAF, Commander, Air Force Space Com-

mand; Lieutenant General Samuel A. Greaves, USAF, Commander, Air Force Space and Missile Systems Center; and public witnesses.

STUDENT SUCCESS ACT; RESILIENT FEDERAL FORESTS ACT OF 2015

Committee on Rules: Full Committee held a hearing on H.R. 5, the "Student Success Act" [meeting II]; and H.R. 2647, the "Resilient Federal Forests Act of 2015". The committee granted, by record vote of 9-4, a rule that provides for further consideration of H.R. 5 under a structured rule. The rule makes in order pursuant to H. Res. 125 the further amendments to H.R. 5 printed in part A of the Rules Committee Report. The rule also grants a structured rule for H.R. 2647. The rule provides one hour of general debate equally divided among and controlled by the chairs and ranking minority members of the Committee on Agriculture and the Committee on Natural Resources. The rule waives all points of order against consideration of the bill. The rule makes in order as original text for purpose of amendment an amendment in the nature of a substitute consisting of the text of Rules Committee Print 114–21, modified by the amendment printed in part B of the Rules Committee report, and provides that it shall be considered as read. The rule waives all points of order against that amendment in the nature of a substitute. The rule makes in order only those further amendments printed in part C of the Rules Committee report. Each such amendment may be offered only in the order printed in the report, may be offered only by a Member designated in the report, shall be considered as read, shall be debatable for the time specified in the report equally divided and controlled by the proponent and an opponent, shall not be subject to amendment, and shall not be subject to a demand for division of the question. The rule waives all points of order against the amendments printed in part C of the report. The rule provides one motion to recommit with or without instructions. Testimony was heard from Chairman Bishop of Utah, and Representatives Thompson of Pennsylvania, Westerman, Polis, Huelskamp, Walker, and Buck.

Joint Meetings

No joint committee meetings were held.

NEW PUBLIC LAWS

(For last listing of Public Laws, see DAILY DIGEST, p. D724)

H.R. 2146, to amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to allow Federal law enforcement officers,

firefighters, and air traffic controllers to make penalty-free withdrawals from governmental plans after age 50. Signed on June 29, 2015. (Public Law 114–26)

H.R. 1295, to extend the African Growth and Opportunity Act, the Generalized System of Preferences, the preferential duty treatment program for Haiti. Signed on June 29, 2015. (Public Law 114–27)

COMMITTEE MEETINGS FOR WEDNESDAY, JULY 8, 2015

(Committee meetings are open unless otherwise indicated)

Senate

Committee on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs: to hold hearings to examine the role of the Financial Stability Board in the United States regulatory framework, 10 a.m., SD-538.

Committee on Environment and Public Works: to hold hearings to examine the President's international climate agenda and implications for domestic environmental policy, 10 a.m., SD-406.

Committee on Foreign Relations: to receive a closed briefing on Department of Defense maritime activities and engagement in the South China Sea, 5 p.m., SVC-217.

Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs: to hold hearings to examine stopping an avian influenza threat to animal and public health, 10 a.m., SD–342.

Committee on Indian Affairs: to hold an oversight hearing to examine a path forward, focusing on trust modernization and reform for Indian lands, 2:15 p.m., SD-628.

Committee on the Judiciary: to hold hearings to examine going dark, focusing on encryption, technology, and the balance between public safety and privacy, 10 a.m., SD–226.

Subcommittee on Crime and Terrorism, to hold hearings to examine cyber crime, focusing on modernizing our legal framework for the information age, 2:15 p.m., SD-226

Select Committee on Intelligence: to hold hearings to examine counterterrorism, counterintelligence, and the challenges of "Going Dark", 2:30 p.m., SH–216.

House

Committee on Agriculture, Full Committee, hearing entitled "Energy and the Rural Economy: the Economic Impact of Exporting Crude Oil", 10 a.m., 1300 Longworth.

Committee on Appropriations, Full Committee, markup on Agriculture Appropriations Bill for FY 2016; and Revised Report on the Suballocation of Budget Allocations for FY 2016, 10:15 a.m., 2359 Rayburn.

Committee on Energy and Commerce, Subcommittee on Communications and Technology, hearing entitled "Internet Governance Progress After ICANN 53", 10 a.m., 2123 Rayburn.

Subcommittee on Health, hearing entitled "Medicaid at 50: Strengthening and Sustaining the Program", 10:15 a.m., 2322 Rayburn.

Committee on Financial Services, Subcommittee on Financial Institutions and Consumer Credit, hearing entitled "Examining the Designation and Regulation of Bank Holding Company SIFIs", 1 p.m., 2128 Rayburn.

Committee on Foreign Affairs, Subcommittee on Asia and the Pacific; and Subcommittee on Terrorism, Non-proliferation, and Trade, joint hearing entitled "Reviewing the U.S.-China Civil Nuclear Cooperation Agreement", 2 p.m., 2172 Rayburn.

Committee on Homeland Security, Subcommittee on Oversight and Management Efficiency, hearing entitled "Examining DHS's Misplaced Focus on Climate Change", 10 a.m., 311 Cannon.

Committee on the Judiciary, Full Committee, markup on H.R. 2329, the "Ensuring Access to Justice for Claims Against the United States Act"; and H.R. 2604, the "Need-Based Educational Aid Act of 2015", 10:30 a.m., 2141 Rayburn.

Committee on Natural Resources, Subcommittee on Energy and Mineral Resources, hearing entitled "The Helium Stewardship Act and the Path Forward", 10 a.m., 1324 Longworth.

Full Committee, markup on H.R. 487, to allow the Miami Tribe of Oklahoma to lease or transfer certain lands; H.R. 959, the "Medgar Evers House Study Act"; H.R. 1554, the "Elkhorn Ranch and White River National Forest Conveyance Act of 2015"; H.R. 1937, the "National Strategic and Critical Minerals Production Act of 2015"; H.R. 1949, the "The National Liberty Memorial Clarification Act of 2015"; H.R. 2223, the "Crags, Colorado Land Exchange Act of 2015"; H.R. 2791, the "Western Oregon Tribal Fairness Act"; H.R. 2898, the "Western Water and American Food Security Act of 2015"; S. 501, the "New Mexico Water Settlement Technical Corrections Act"; and H.R. 1138, the "Sawtooth National Recreation Area and Jerry Peak Wilderness Additions Act", 4 p.m., 1324 Longworth.

Committee on Rules, Full Committee, hearing on H.R. 6, the "21st Century Cures Act", 3 p.m., H-313 Capitol.

Committee on Science, Space, and Technology, Subcommittee on Research and Technology; and Subcommittee on Oversight, joint hearing entitled "Is the OPM Data Breach the Tip of the Iceberg?", 2 p.m., 2318 Rayburn.

Committee on Small Business, Full Committee, hearing entitled "The Calm Before the Storm: Oversight of the SBA's Disaster Loan Program", 11 a.m., 2360 Rayburn.

Committee on Veterans' Affairs, Subcommittee on Economic Opportunity, hearing entitled "A Review of VA's Vocational Rehabilitation and Employment Program", 10 a.m., 334 Cannon.

CONGRESSIONAL PROGRAM AHEAD

Week of July 8 through July 10, 2015

Senate Chamber

On *Wednesday*, Senate will continue consideration of S. 1177, Every Child Achieves Act.

During the balance of the week, Senate may consider any cleared legislative and executive business.

Senate Committees

(Committee meetings are open unless otherwise indicated)

Committee on Appropriations: July 9, business meeting to markup an original bill entitled, "State, Foreign Operations, and Related Programs Appropriations Act, 2016", 10:30 a.m., SD–106.

Committee on Armed Services: July 9, to hold hearings to examine the nomination of General Joseph F. Dunford, Jr., USMC, to be Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, 9:30 a.m., SH–216.

Committee on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs: July 8, to hold hearings to examine the role of the Financial Stability Board in the United States regulatory framework, 10 a.m., SD-538.

Committee on Environment and Public Works: July 8, to hold hearings to examine the President's international climate agenda and implications for domestic environmental policy, 10 a.m., SD–406.

Committee on Foreign Relations: July 8, to receive a closed briefing on Department of Defense maritime activities and engagement in the South China Sea, 5 p.m., SVC-217.

July 9, Full Committee, to hold hearings to examine the nominations of Michele Thoren Bond, of the District of Columbia, to be an Assistant Secretary of State (Consular Affairs), and Sarah Elizabeth Mendelson, of the District of Columbia, to be Representative on the Economic and Social Council of the United Nations, with the rank of Ambassador, and to be an Alternate Representative to the Sessions of the General Assembly of the United Nations, 10 a.m., SD–419.

Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs: July 8, to hold hearings to examine stopping an avian influenza threat to animal and public health, 10 a.m., SD-342.

July 9, Full Committee, to hold hearings to examine understanding America's long-term fiscal picture, 10 a.m., SD-342.

Committee on Indian Affairs: July 8, to hold an oversight hearing to examine a path forward, focusing on trust modernization and reform for Indian lands, 2:15 p.m., SD-628.

Committee on the Judiciary: July 8, to hold hearings to examine going dark, focusing on encryption, technology, and the balance between public safety and privacy, 10 a.m., SD–226.

July 8, Subcommittee on Crime and Terrorism, to hold hearings to examine cyber crime, focusing on modernizing our legal framework for the information age, 2:15 p.m., SD–226.

July 9, Full Committee, business meeting to consider S. 1482, to improve and reauthorize provisions relating to the application of the antitrust laws to the award of needbased educational aid, S. 1300, to amend the section 221 of the Immigration and Nationality Act to provide relief for adoptive families from immigrant visa fees in certain situations, and the nominations of Luis Felipe Restrepo, of Pennsylvania, to be United States Circuit Judge for the Third Circuit, Travis Randall McDonough, to be United States District Judge for the Eastern District of Tennessee, and Waverly D. Crenshaw, Jr., to be United States District Judge for the Middle District of Tennessee, 10 a.m., SD–226.

Select Committee on Intelligence: July 8, to hold hearings to examine counterterrorism, counterintelligence, and the challenges of "Going Dark", 2:30 p.m., SH–216.

House Committees

Committee on Agriculture, July 9, Subcommittee on Livestock and Foreign Agriculture, hearing entitled "U.S. International Food Aid Programs: Oversight and Accountability", 9:30 a.m., 1300 Longworth.

Committee on Appropriations, July 9, Subcommittee on Homeland Security, markup on Homeland Security Appropriations Bill, FY 2016, 10 a.m., B-308 Rayburn.

Committee on Energy and Commerce, July 9, Subcommittee on Energy and Power, hearing entitled "H.R. 702, Legislation to Prohibit Restrictions on the Export of Crude Oil", 10 a.m., 2123 Rayburn.

July 10, Subcommittee on Commerce, Manufacturing, and Trade, hearing entitled "H.R. 985, Concrete Masonry Products Research, Education, and Promotion Act of 2015", 9 a.m., 2123 Rayburn.

Committee on Financial Services, July 9, Full Committee, hearing entitled "The Dodd-Frank Act Five Years Later: Are We More Stable?", 10 a.m., 2128 Rayburn.

July 10, Subcommittee on Housing and Insurance, hearing entitled "The Future of Housing in America: Oversight of HUD's Public and Indian Housing Programs", 9:45 a.m., 2128 Rayburn.

Committee on Foreign Affairs, July 9, Full Committee, hearing entitled "Implications of a Nuclear Agreement with Iran", 10 a.m., 2172 Rayburn.

July 9, Subcommittee on the Middle East and North Africa, hearing entitled "The Gulf Cooperation Council Camp David Summit: Any Results?", 2 p.m., 2172 Rayburn.

July 9, Subcommittee on Africa, Global Health, Global Human Rights, and International Organizations, hearing entitled "Africa's Displaced People", 2 p.m., 2200 Rayburn.

Committee on the Judiciary, July 9, Subcommittee on Regulatory Reform, Commercial and Antitrust Law, hearing on the "Financial Institution Bankruptcy Act of 2015", 10 a.m., 2141 Rayburn.

July 9, Subcommittee on the Constitution and Civil Justice, hearing entitled "The State of Property Rights in America Ten Years After Kelo v. City of New London", 2 p.m., 2141 Rayburn.

Committee on Natural Resources, July 9, Full Committee, markup on H.R. 487, to allow the Miami Tribe of Oklahoma to lease or transfer certain lands; H.R. 959, the "Medgar Evers House Study Act"; H.R. 1554, the "Elkhorn Ranch and White River National Forest Conveyance Act of 2015"; H.R. 1937, the "National Strategic and Critical Minerals Production Act of 2015"; H.R. 1949, the "National Liberty Memorial Clarification Act of 2015"; H.R. 2223, the "Crags, Colorado Land Exchange Act of 2015"; H.R. 2791, the "Western Oregon Tribal Fairness Act"; H.R. 2898, the "Western Water and American Food Security Act of 2015"; S. 501, the "New Mexico Water Settlement Technical Corrections Act"; and H.R. 1138, the "Sawtooth National Recreation Area and Jerry Peak Wilderness Additions Act" (continued), 10 a.m., 1324 Longworth.

Committee on Oversight and Government Reform, July 9, Full Committee, hearing entitled "Construction Costs and Delays at the U.S. Embassy in Kabul", 9 a.m., 2154 Rayburn.

Committee on Science, Space, and Technology, July 9, Full Committee, hearing entitled "Examining EPA's Regulatory Overreach", 10 a.m., 2318 Rayburn.

July 10, Subcommittee on Space, hearing entitled "The International Space Station: Addressing Operational Challenges", 9 a.m., 2318 Rayburn.

Committee on Veterans' Affairs, July 9, Subcommittee on Disability Assistance and Memorial Affairs, markup on H.R. 2214, the "Disabled Veterans' Access to Medical Exams Improvement Act"; H.R. 800, the "Express Appeals Act"; H.R. 1379, to amend title 38, United States Code, to authorize the Board of Veterans' Appeals to develop evidence in appeal cases, and for other purposes; H.R. 1380, to amend title 38, United States Code, to expand the eligibility for a medallion furnished by the Secretary of Veterans Affairs to signify the veteran status of a deceased individual; H.R. 2605, the "Veterans Fiduciary Reform Act of 2015"; H.R. 1302, the "VA Appeals Backlog Relief Act"; H.R. 1338, the "Dignified Interment of Our Veterans Act of 2015"; H.R. 1384, the "Honor America's Guard-Reserve Retirees Act"; and H.R. 2691, the "Veterans' Survivors Claims Processing Automation Act of 2015", 2 p.m., 334 Cannon.

Committee on Ways and Means, July 9, Full Committee, hearing on promoting work opportunities for Social Security Disability Insurance beneficiaries, 10 a.m., 1100 Longworth.

Résumé of Congressional Activity

FIRST SESSION OF THE ONE HUNDRED FOURTEENTH CONGRESS

The first table gives a comprehensive résumé of all legislative business transacted by the Senate and House. The second table accounts for all nominations submitted to the Senate by the President for Senate confirmation.

DATA ON LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY

DISPOSITION OF EXECUTIVE NOMINATIONS

January 6 through June 30, 2015

January 6 through June 30, 2015

	Senate	House	Total	Civilian nominations, totaling 225, disposed of as follows:	
Days in session	93	88		Confirmed	50
Time in session	601 hrs, 49'	430 hrs, 43'		Unconfirmed	
Congressional Record:				Withdrawn	
Pages of proceedings	4,657	4,776		,	•
Extensions of Remarks		995			
Public bills enacted into law	6	21	27	Other Civilian nominations, totaling 2,042, disposed of as follows:	
Private bills enacted into law				Confirmed	1,834
Bills in conference	2	2		Unconfirmed	207
Measures passed, total	203	268	471	Withdrawn	
Senate bills	30	7			
House bills	27	166			
Senate joint resolutions	1	1		Air Force nominations, totaling 4,744, disposed of as follows:	
House joint resolutions	1	2		Confirmed	3,134
Senate concurrent resolutions	7	5		Unconfirmed	1,610
House concurrent resolutions	12	14			
Simple resolutions	125	73			
Measures reported, total	* 127	* 185	312	Army nominations, totaling 380, disposed of as follows:	
Senate bills	87	2		Confirmed	341
House bills	15	142		Unconfirmed	39
Senate joint resolutions					
House joint resolutions		1		Name nominations totaling 1502 diamond of as follows:	
Senate concurrent resolutions	1			Navy nominations, totaling 1,593, disposed of as follows:	
House concurrent resolutions		3		Confirmed	,
Simple resolutions	24	37		Unconfirmed	12
Special reports	14	3			
Conference reports	1	1		Marine Corps nominations, totaling 1,060, disposed of as follows:	
Measures pending on calendar	95	41			
Measures introduced, total	1,946	3,409	5,355	Confirmed	,
Bills	1,694	2,946		Unconfirmed	2
Joint resolutions	17	58			
Concurrent resolutions	19	59		C	
Simple resolutions	216	346		Summary	
Quorum calls	5	1		Total nominations carried over from the First Session	0
Yea-and-nay votes	220	161		Total nominations received this Session	10,044
Recorded votes		227		Total confirmed	7,998
Bills vetoed	2			Total unconfirmed	2,041
Vetoes overridden				Total withdrawn	5
				Total returned to the White House	0

Next Meeting of the SENATE 10 a.m., Wednesday, July 8

Next Meeting of the HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 10 a.m., Wednesday, July 8

Senate Chamber

Program for Wednesday: Senate will continue consideration of S. 1177, Every Child Achieves Act.

(Senate will recess from 12:30 p.m. until 2:15 p.m. for their respective party conferences.)

House Chamber

Program for Wednesday: Continue consideration of H.R. 2822—Department of the Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2016. Consideration of H.R. 5-Elementary and Secondary Education Reauthorization Act (Subject to a Rule). Motion to Go to Conference on H.R. 644—Trade Facilitation and Trade Enforcement Act.

Extensions of Remarks, as inserted in this issue.

HOUSE Brownley, Julia, Calif., E998 Burgess, Michael C., Tex., E1001, E1002 Cicilline, David N., R.I., E1001 Clyburn, James E., S.C., E1011 Coffman, Mike, Colo., E1009 Courtney, Joe, Conn., E1008 Dingell, Debbie, Mich., E1004, E1010 Dold, Robert J., Ill., E1005, E1011 Esty, Elizabeth H., Conn., E1004 Frankel, Lois, Fla., E1003, E1006, E1009 Goodlatte, Bob, Va., E1009 Higgins, Brian, N.Y., E997, E999 Hoyer, Steny H., Md., E1007 Hurt, Robert, Va., E1012

Israel, Steve, N.Y., E999 Jackson Lee, Sheila, Tex., E1002, E1004, E1007, E1009, E1010 Jeffries, Hakeem S., N.Y., E1001 Keating, William R., Mass., E997, E1000, E1001 Kline, John, Minn., E1002 Lieu, Ted, Calif., E1006 Luetkemeyer, Blaine, Mo., E998 Marchant, Kenny, Tex., E1003 McCollum, Betty, Minn., E1008 Miller, Jeff, Fla., E1011 Murphy, Patrick, Fla., E1004 Norton, Eleanor Holmes, The District of Columbia, E1010 Pingree, Chellie, Me., E1003, E1010

Pocan, Mark, Wisc., E1003 Price, Tom, Ga., E1007 Rogers, Mike, Ala., E1005, E1011 Rooney, Thomas J., Fla., E998 Roybal-Allard, Lucille, Calif., E1009 Ryan, Tim, Ohio, E999 Smith, Christopher H., N.J., E999 Speier, Jackie, Calif., E1008 Veasey, Marc A., Tex., E1006 Visclosky, Peter J., Ind., E997, E998 Wilson, Joe, S.C., E1005 Young, David, Iowa, E1002, E1005, E1007, E1008, E1010, E1011



Congressional Record The Congressional Record (USPS 087-390). The Periodicals postage is paid at Washington, D.C. The public proceedings of each House of Congress, as reported by the Official Reporters thereof, are printed pursuant to directions of the Joint Committee on Printing as authorized by appropriate provisions of Title 44, United

Zeldin, Lee M., N.Y., E1012

States Code, and published for each day that one or both Houses are in session, excepting very infrequent instances when two or more unusually small consecutive issues are printed one time. Public access to the Congressional Record is available online through the U.S. Government Publishing Office, at www.fdsys.gov, free of charge to the user. The information is updated online each day the Congressional Record is published. For more information, contact the GPO Customer Contact Center, U.S. Government Publishing Office. Phone 202-512-1800, or 866-512-1800 (toll-free). E-Mail, contactcenter@gpo.gov. ¶To place an order for any of these products, visit the U.S. Government Online Bookstore at: bookstore.gpo.gov. Mail orders to: Superintendent of Documents, P.O. Box 979050, St. Louis, MO 63197-9000, or phone orders to 866-512-1800 (toll-free), 202-512-1800 (D.C. area), or fax to 202-512-2104. Remit check or money order, made payable to the Superintendent of Documents, or use VISA, MasterCard, Discover, American Express, or GPO Deposit Account. ¶Following each session of Congress, the daily Congressional Record is revised, printed, permanently bound and sold by the Superintendent of Documents in individual parts or by sets. With the exception of copyrighted articles, there are no restrictions on the republication of material from the Congressional Record.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to the Superintendent of Documents, Congressional Record, U.S. Government Publishing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402, along with the entire mailing label from the last issue received.